ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 25, 2016
9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Lesil MQiire

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Bill W el echowski

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON ON GOVERNOR APPQO NTEES

Vi ol ent Crines Conpensation Board
CGerard Godfrey - Eagle River

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Counci l
Bryce Johnson - Juneau
Brad Reich - Kotzebue
Carrie Bel den - Anchorage
John Papasodora - None
Kelly Swi hart - Petersburg

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

State Board of Parole
Steve Meyer - Kenai
Jason WIlson - Juneau

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO. 91

"An Act relating to crimnal |aw and procedure; relating to
controlled substances; relating to probation; relating to
sentencing; establishing a pretrial services program wth
pretrial services officers in the Departnment of Corrections;

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -1- February 25, 2016



relating to permanent fund dividends; relating to electronic
monitoring; relating to penalties for violations of rmunicipal
or di nances; relating to parole; relating to correctional

restitution centers; relating to comunity work service;
relating to revocation, term nation, suspension, cancellation,
or restoration of a driver's |icense; relating to the

di squalification of persons convicted of <certain felony drug
offenses from participation in the food stanmp and tenporary
assi stance prograns; relating to the duties of the comm ssioner
of corrections; anmending Rules 6, 32, 32.1, 38, 41, and 43,
Al aska Rules of Crimnal Procedure, and repealing Rules 41(d)
and (e), Alaska Rules of Crimnal Procedure; and providing for
an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 91

SHORT TITLE: OWN BUS CRI M LAW & PROCEDURE; CORRECTI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COGHI LL

03/ 25/ 15 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 25/ 15 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

04/ 02/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 02/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 02/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 03/ 16 (S) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRALS
02/ 03/ 16 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 13/ 16 (S) STA AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 13/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 13/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 18/ 16 (S) STA AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 18/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 25/ 16 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

GERAD GODFREY, Chair

Vi ol ent Crines Conpensation Board

Eagl e River, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Violent
Cri mes Conpensati on Board.

BRYCE JOHNSQON, Chief of Police
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 2- February 25, 2016



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council .

BRAD REI CH, Director of Public Services

Nor t hwest Bor ough

Kot zebue, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Violent
Cri mes Conpensati on Board.

CARRI E BELDEN, Division Director

Probati on and Parol e

Depart ment of Corrections

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council .

JOHN PAPASODORA, Chief of Police

Norme, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council .

KELLY SW HART, Chief of Police

Pet er sburg, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council .

STEVE MEYER, Retired Probation Parole Oficer

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the State Board
of Parol e.

JASON W LSQN, VPSO Manager

Tlingit & Haida

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the State Board
of Parole

JORDAN SCHI LLI NG, St af f

Senat or John Coghi ||

Al aska State Legislature

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information about SB 91 on behalf
of the sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 20 AM

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 3- February 25, 2016



CHAIR BILL STO.TZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Huggins, and Chair Stoltz. He noted
Senat or W el echowski was excused.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS ON_ GOVERNOR APPO NTEES

9:03:47 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE announced confirmation hearings on Governor
Wal ker' s appoi nt ees.

Violent Crines Conpensati on Board

9:04: 30 AM

GERAD GODFREY, Chair, Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board,
testified as an appointee to the Violent Crinmes Conpensation
Board. He described his past experience serving on the board
since 2003 and shared that the board has nmade a |ot of positive
contributions for victinms of violent crinme. He said the staff on
the board is extrenely dedicated. He pointed out there were
about 950 victimclains |ast year.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked for the primary funding source for the
conpensation restitution fund.

MR. GODFREY said it is funded from garnished PFD nonies of
incarcerated felons and wth federal Victins of Crine Act funds.
He said only once did they have to request general fund support.
He related that their budget has been as |ow as $400,000 and as
high as $2.4 mllion; generally $2 mllion is adequate to neet
their mssion. The |ast board neeting is scheduled for the end
of the fiscal year in order to deal with the funding status.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if he has concerns about a restructuring of
the PFD and how it would affect the funding source.

MR. GODFREY stated there is wuncertainty there. He gave an
exanpl e of how it mght ook with a $1,000 PFD; it would provide
funds for half the year. He referred to the Miurkowski years when
the PFD was small and there was a need to reduce the
conpensation anmounts. During that tinme, caps were put on
counseling, funeral, and nmedical bills. He provided strategies
they learned fromthat scenario toward negotiations over nedical
bills.

9:13: 01 AM

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -4- February 25, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE nentioned victins' rights issues.
SENATOR MCGUI RE j oi ned the comm ttee.

9:13: 26 AM

She thanked M. Godfrey for his service. She asked whether the
board could negotiate funeral and other costs if the PFD is
reduced. She requested the board use a range to fund victins.

MR. GODFREY reported that funeral honmes are not interested in
negotiating. He said counseling allocations should be revisited
and, in the past, there was a cap on counseling paynents. He
agreed that the PFD is declining. He said the board val ues | ost
wage replacenent highly.

9:17:18 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE thanked M. Godfrey and other board nenbers, Dr.
Brown, Dr. Regina Chenault, and Leroy Barker.

Al aska Police Standards Counci

9:19: 01 AM

BRYCE JOHNSON, Chief of Police, testified as an appointee to the
Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC). He shared his background
in law enforcenent and said he cares deeply about the profession
and where it is headed. He called | aw enforcenment a success due
to a decline in crine rates.

9:20:45 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked what the challenges of being on the counci
m ght be going forward.

CH EF JOHNSON replied that one of the challenges is ensuring the
standards of the profession by |ooking at confidential cases of
of ficers who have done things that would disqualify them from
serving in the profession and coming to a just decision as to
t he consequences. However, he said another focus should be on
how to keep things positive, such as by |eadership training.

SENATOR MCGUI RE thanked Chief Johnson for his wllingness to
serve on the council. She noted a cultural shift in the way |aw
enforcenent relates to the public by enforcing community val ues
and outreach. She spoke of Chief Johnson's innovative ideas
toward that goal

CHI EF JOHNSON agreed that there is a shift from the warrior
mentality to a guardian ethos. He spoke of how |aw enforcenent

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2016



has evolved from community-oriented policing to intelligence-I|ed
policing after 911. After Ferguson, nost agencies turned back to
the community-guardian nodel. He spoke of the "Coffee with the
Cops," a national program and other ways of reaching out to the
publi c.

9:26: 23 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS agreed that 911 created a real problem in the
country. He said sone police look nore like the Gestapo. He
suggested taking a look at that in light of recent shootings. He
asked how to keep police standards high for applicants.

CHI EF JOHNSON agreed that standards need to be high. He used LA
and Mam as exanples where police standards were |owered
resulting in scandals. He said the challenge is to find
qualified applicants and to decide whether or not to adjust
standards. He noted APSC sets base standards and nost of the new
standards have raised the bar and include a psychol ogical
profile. He said there is about a 6 percent pass rate for new
applicants in Juneau.

9:30: 33 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked why an officer cannot use nmarij uana.

CH EF JOHNSON replied that it is against federal law, it is a
controlled illegal substance.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked whether the council addresses departnent
st andar ds.

CHI EF JOHNSON explained that there are rules for departnent
standards that the council addresses.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted the <council is also responsible for
standards for correctional officers.

CH EF JOHNSON |ooked at the report regarding correctional
officers and has talked to the Departnment of Corrections about
concerns with Title 47 holds. He thought the underlying issues
were simlar to police department policies and procedures.

9:33:47 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked what resources are available to officers
in Juneau when they encounter soneone under the influence of
al cohol or drugs.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 6- February 25, 2016



CHI EF JOHNSON expl ained that JPD follows Title 47, which |abels
intoxication a nedical problem Oher options are for officers
to take the person home, make use of the Rainforest Recovery
Center, admt themto Bartlett Regional Hospital - Housing First
is in process - and the last resort is Lenmon Creek Correctional
Center. He said they do not use Title 47 as a catchall and it is
not used when a crinme is commtted.

9:36:41 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked Chief Johnson. He spoke of Village
Public Safety Oficers (VPSOs) and the range of issues they
deal with. He asked how to lay out an open door for those who
want to go into |law enforcenent. He voiced concern about how to
prevent youthful discretions from disqualifying a person from a
| aw enf orcenent career.

CHIEF JOHNSON replied that he recomends to those who are
interested in the profession to "be a good person.” He said
there are school resource prograns, such as Youth Acadeny for
m ddl e school students and the Police Explorer Program at the
hi gh school |evel. He described the progranmis curricul um

SENATOR COGHI LL thought those prograns would be inportant for
t he up-and-com ng generati on.

9:40: 56 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked what the standards to beconme a police
chief are.

CH EF JOHNSON replied that they would have to be able to be
certified as a police officer in Alaska by attending a police
acadeny. To becone a police chief they nust have all the
qualifications to becone a police officer and then have
addi tional |eadership training and experience.

9:42:43 AM

SENATOR MCCGUI RE inquired about crisis intervention training. She
asked about how nuch tinme is spent in pro-active and re-active
interventions and how nuch tinme the council spends in providing
trai ning prograns for officers.

CHI EF JOHNSON said the APSC staff sponsors a |lot of pro-active
training. He thought the council spent the majority of their
time dealing with negative behavior and sanctions. He used a
pyram d anal ogy to describe how their tinme should be allocated.
He said one of his goals is to engage nore in the pro-active
ar ea.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -7- February 25, 2016



9:47: 05 AM

BRAD REICH, Director of Public Services, Northwest Borough,
testified as an appointee to the Alaska Police Standards
Council. He discussed his new role with the VPSO program He
noted this will be his second term on the council and he is
| ooking forward to working on police ethics, planning, training,
and followi ng standards. He agreed that there are sone negative
duties on the council, but also positive ones, such as the
trai ning program and inproving public safety.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked about standards for correctional officers.

MR. REICH suggested to focus on nore training for correctional
of ficers.

SENATOR COGHI LL expressed gratitude for M. Reich's work.

MR. REICH shared his past experience as a VPSO in 1990. He said
his region has 9 VPSOs and could use 13, as they are really
hel ping the region. He thanked the state and |egislature for the
VPSO program

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if there have been any challenges or
opportunities as a nmenber of the council on the use of firearns
for VPSO s.

9:51: 05 AM

MR REICH said there are 4 or 5 VPSOs in training at the
acadeny and the last stage is where they are required to pass a
psychol ogical test. He said this process is new and he would
like to get nore information about it.

9:52: 04 AM

CARRI E  BELDEN, Division Director, Probation and Parole,
Department of Corrections (DOC), testified as an appointee to
the Alaska Police Standards Council. She described her
prof essi onal background as a probation officer, on the parole
board, and currently as a division director. She said she
believes in the service the council provides and would like to
help them with their decisions and issues related to DOC. She
agreed that officers should be warriors and guardians and be
pro-active. She concluded that there are things that |[|aw
enf orcenent agencies could do better.

9:55: 03 AM

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 8- February 25, 2016



SENATOR HUGE NS referenced Ms. Belden's resune and noted the
term "absconder bank." He asked what an "absconder bank" is.

MS. BELDEN explained that it is for people on parole who are no
| onger reporting to their parole officers and have active
warrants.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if that is a |arge nunber
MS. BELDEN said it varies by conmunity.

SENATOR HUGEA NS asked for her view on how effective ankle
nmonitors are.

MS. BELDEN t hought ankle nonitors were a tool in the tool box.
They help for some people to remain connected to their famly
and keep working. They are not appropriate for others.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if she is an exenpt enpl oyee.
MS. BELDEN sai d yes.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if there was any conflict of interest when
dealing with corrections officers.

9: 58: 33 AM

M5. BELDEN said she would recuse herself from the revocations of
corrections officers that belong to her agency. She did not feel
her appointnment would be a conflict of interest. She concl uded
t hat she would do what is right.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if she would participate in the discussions
and debates and when she woul d recuse herself.

M5. BELDEN assunmed that the council had an established pattern
in place for that situation.

CHAI R STOLTZE was i npressed by Ms. Bel den's boundari es.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he has high regard for Ms. Bel den.

10: 01: 37 AM

JOHN PAPASODORA, Chief of Police, testified as an appointee to
the Al aska Police Standards Council. He shared his professiona
background as a |aw enforcenent officer and on the council. He

described the council as a regulatory conmttee and one that can
pronot e professionalism

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 9- February 25, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE t hanked Chi ef Papasodora for his service.

10: 04: 33 AM
KELLY SW HART, Chief of Police, testified as an appointee to the
Al aska Police Standards Council. He provided his background in

mlitary service and in 20 years of |aw enforcenent. He said the
council has an inportant job and deals with negative aspects,
but also helps define limts, develop standards and training
prograns, and provides accountability. He wel coned the chance to
serve.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted Chief Swihart's good reputation in the Mat-
Su Val | ey.

SENATOR COGHI LL thought Chief Swi hart's varied experience was an
asset .

CHAIR STOLTZE acknow edged two appointees in the audience,
Comm ssioner WIlianms and Conm ssioner Fol ger.

State Board of Parol e

10: 09: 04 AM

STEVE MEYER, Retired Probation Parole Oficer, testified as an
appointee to the State Board of Parole. He provided his
prof essi onal background at DOC, at the Anchorage Police Acadeny,
at Wl dwood, and then as a probation officer.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted his broad interest in public service.

MR. MEYER said public service has been a big part of his life
and he is honored to have been appointed to the board.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if M. Myer has |looked at SB 91 and the
proposed provisions of parole.

MR. MEYER said he has and he generally supports the bill.

10: 11: 41 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE asked for his opinion of corrections officers
spending nore time with prisoners and having a larger role in
t he appropri ateness of rel ease.

MR. MEYER thought the idea had nerit because corrections
of fi cers have val uabl e i nput.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 25, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE said there are two sides to the issue. He thought
parole officers m ght have an advisory role in prisoner release.

SENATOR HUGA NS noted M. Meyer is on the Board of Directors for
the Safari C ub in Kenai

MR. MEYER said he is no | onger on that board.

10: 15: 47 AM

JASON WLSON, VPSO Manager, Tlingit & Haida, testified as an
appointee to the State Board of Parole. He shared his
prof essi onal background as a youth counselor at the Johnson
Youth Center, on the Indian Child Welfare Team and currently as
t he VPSO manager for Sout heast Al aska.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if his background is in youth corrections.
MR. WLSON said for the nost part.

SENATOR HUGAE NS thanked M. WIlson for his application. He told
a story about youth hunting on reservations. He noted success is
an inportant part of the building block for youth.

MR. WLSON agreed. He shared his experience at hearings where
yout hs have graduated to the adult system He nmintained that
maki ng a difference has to start with youth.

10: 20: 09 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked whether the revisions nade to the juvenile
wai ver bill work and if they should be changed or repeal ed.

MR, WLSON thought there was room for inprovenent and the
ram fications and negative inpacts needed to be |ooked at. He
said sone parts work and sone don't.

CHAIR STOLTZE shared a story of a juvenile nurderer and
di scussed efforts of sone to repeal the bill. He noted youthfu
of fenders can be violent.

CHAI R STOLTZE cl osed public testinony.

CHAI R STOLTZE advanced the nanes of the appointees to the full
nmenbership of the Legislature in joint session for consideration
and a final vote.

10: 23: 48 AM
At ease

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 25, 2016



SB 91- OWI BUS CRI M LAW & PROCEDURE; CORRECTI ONS

10: 24: 39 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consideration of SB 91. He noted
Senator Coghill has four anmendnents to the bill

SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL, sponsor of SB 91, noted four anendnents
resulting from conversations with the Ofice of Victins' Rights,
|aw enforcenent, shelters for donmestic violence, and new
concepts in law. He said the goal is to nmake sure the public is
safer.

10: 26: 39 AM

He expl ained that Amendnent 1 is the |argest and changes several
sections; it is under the m sdemeanor section and would renove
donmestic violence assaults from the trier fact to ensure that
donmestic violence assault in the fourth degree can be sentenced
within the normal range of the m sdeneanor-A range of zero to
365 days or a year. He added that Amendnent 1 will also take
harassnment -2, trespass-2, and crimnal mschief-5 back to cl ass-
B m sdeneanors; these changes involve Sections 8, 13, 26, and
27.

He related that under felonies, the inflation adjustnent was
taken out of the felony theft level. The crimnal negligence
homcide of a child remained the same. Sex offenders were
excluded from administrative parole in Section 95 as were
geriatric sex offenders. Adm nistrative parole was nmade
di scretionary.

10: 30: 07 AM

He addressed changes in probation. In Section 61, the maximm
term of probation for an unclassified felony was increased to
ten years. Under probation and parole, unclassified felonies of
sexual assault and donestic violence were excluded from the
presunptive early discharge. Language requiring victinms to
testify was al so del et ed.

He expl ai ned that suspended entry of judgenent excludes donestic
vi ol ence offenses under Section 59. He said there were changes
in controlled substance; heroin was noved into its own category
and net hanphet am ne precursor | anguage was added.

10: 32: 26 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 25, 2016



JORDAN  SCHI LLI NG, Staff, Senat or Coghi | I, Al aska State
Legi slature, provided information about SB 91 on behalf of the
sponsor. He explained changes to the m sconduct involving
controll ed substances, responding to concerns by the Ofice of
Victine Rights (OVR). The neth precursor |anguage was added back
into the bill and the enhanced presunptive range for delivery to
an individual under 19 wll cone back up to the unclassified
felony range, rather than the Cass A felony range. There was
al so concerns from Law and OBR that it wouldn't be prudent to
change the enhanced sentence for possessing drugs within 500
feet of a school. That was noved to its existing |evel. Another
concern from OVR was the change of the enhanced presunptive
range for manufacture of nmethanphetamine in a residence where a
child resides, so that was also left at its existing range of 7
to 11 years.

SENATOR COGHI LL clarified that it was returned back to the
hi gher fel ony.

He addressed a change requested by |aw enforcenent in Anchorage,
on page 21, lines 15 and 25. He asked which section that was
found in.

MR. SCHI LLING clarified that it is in AS 12.25.180 or Section
37.

SENATOR COGHILL continued to explain that the <change is
regarding soneone who is a "significant" danger to self and
others. The word "significant” was renoved. Exceptions for
sexual offenses were created. Al so, a new subsection was created
that offers liability imunity for police officers when naking
qui ck judgenent calls.

10: 35: 49 AM

He discussed an anendnent regarding random drug testing for
t hose who have been convicted for a drug offense. He said it is
a Title 47 issue. The amendnent states that those in welfare
system progranms will be required to participate in random drug
testing. He said it is a public safety issue.

CHAI R STOLTZE stated that the amendnent is focused only on those
in the crimnal justice system

SENATOR COGHILL agreed. He added that the purpose is for

accountability and marijuana testing was excluded at this tine
due to questions about testing.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 25, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE noted that the amendnents are posted on BASIS.
SENATOR COGHI LL said Anendnent 1 is the nost conplicat ed.

CHAI R STOLTZE suggested a brief description of each be included
in the posting. He thanked Senator Coghill for including
comments fromthe public into the changes.

SENATOR COGHI LL described the extensive nunber of neetings that
took place. He mamintained that the bill is a work in progress
but the nost troubl esonme areas have been addressed.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented on the outreach to police officers and
that their testinony is reflected in the changes.

SENATOR COGHI LL concluded that the guiding principal is to keep
peopl e safe.

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that the anmendnments will nost likely
be rolled into the bill.

10: 41: 30 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS conplinented the conmittee and the sponsor for
accommodating outside opinions and ideas, as well for saving
noney.

SENATOR MCGUI RE agreed and appreciated the work the sponsor and
coonmittee have done, and the balance in the bill between
protection, victins' rights, and costs. She called it one of the
best pieces of legislation in her career.

CHAI R STOLTZE appreciated Comm ssioner WIllians' follow ng of
the | egislation.

CHAI R STOLTZE held SB 91 in commttee.

10: 45: 40 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Stoltz adjourned the Senate State Affairs Conmttee at
10: 45 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 25, 2016



